
  

  
 

 

 

 

 

City Council Meeting  

City Council Chambers 

145 West Broad Street 

Spartanburg, SC  29306 

Monday, April 22, 2019 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                      

I. Moment of Silence 

  

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

III. Approval of the Minutes of the April 8, 2019 City Council Meeting 

   

IV. Approval of the Agenda of the April 22, 2019 City Council Meeting 

                                                                              

V.  Public Comment 
 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 

 

VI.  Recognition of Retiring Animal Services Officer Mike Johnson 

  Presenter:  Mayor Junie White 

 

VII.  Special Events Department Update 

  Presenter:  Mandy Merck, Special Events Manager 

 

VIII. Ordinance 

 

 A. Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement for the Transfer of  

  328 Caulder Avenue – Block Map Sheet 7-16-07, Parcel 157.00; 330 Caulder  

  Avenue – Block Map Sheet 7-16-07; Parcel 158.00; and 334 Caulder Avenue  

  – Block Map Sheet 7-16-07, Parcel 159.00 (First Reading) 

  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director  

        

IX. Other Business 

 

 A. Saxon Avenue Culvert Improvement Project 

  Presenter:  Jay Squires, Streets and Storm Water Manager   

    

X. Consent Agenda 

 

 A. Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Spartanburg 1988, Chapter 2,   

  Article V, Section 2, Division 1. Generally to Add Section 2 – 151 through   

  Section 2-153   

  (Second Reading) 

             Presenter: Bob Coler, City Attorney 

  

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 

Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a 

Public Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

 

 

 



  

* Non-Agenda Items 

  City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter   

  pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel  

  matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item  

  considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City  

  Council. The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the  

  designated time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 

 

 *Agenda Items 

  City Code Sec. 2-56. Addressing Council, Comments or Remarks to Council on Agenda Items Not Requiring Public Hearing. On    

  agenda items not requiring a Public Hearing, please provide to the City Clerk prior to the opening of the meeting, your desire to  

  speak on an agenda item. Remarks shall be limited to five (5) minutes and total remarks on any agenda item shall not exceed  

  twenty (20) minutes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XI. City Council Updates 

 

XII. Executive Sessions    

 

 A. Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-40-70 (a) (2) of the South Carolina  

        Code to Receive Legal Advice Related to Acquisition of Property 

 

           B. Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-4-70 (a) (5) of the South Carolina 

 Code to Discuss Matters Relating to an Economic Development Project   

 

 Council may take action on matters discussed in Executive Session after exiting   

 Executive Session. 

 

XIII. Adjournment    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Agenda 
Page Two – April 22, 2019 



  

 

          
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

III.  



1 

 

  
City Council Meeting  

City Council Chambers 

145 West Broad Street 

Spartanburg, SC  29306 

Monday, April 8, 2019 

5:30 p.m. 

 

(These minutes are subject to approval 

at the April 22, 2019 City Council meeting.)      

 

 City Council met this date with the following Councilmembers present: Mayor Junie 

White, Mayor pro tem Alan Jenkins, Councilmembers Erica Brown, Jerome Rice, Ruth 

Littlejohn and Jamie Fulmer. Councilmember Sterling Anderson was out sick. City 

Manager Chris Story and City Attorney Robert Coler were also in attendance. Notice of 

the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of 

Information Act. All City Council meetings are recorded for a complete transcript. 

                                                                      

I. Moment of Silence - observed 

  

II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited 

 

III. Approval of the Minutes of the March 25, 2019 City Council Meeting – 

Councilmember Littlejohn made a motion to approve the minutes as received. 

Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

   

IV. Approval of the Agenda of the April 8, 2019 City Council Meeting –  

Mayor pro tem Jenkins made a motion to approve the agenda as received. 

Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

                                                                              

V.  Public Comment 
 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 

The following citizens spoke regarding recent proposed changes by the Spartanburg 

Water System: 

1.  Len Fletcher, 304 Lakefront Rd., Inman, SC 

2.  Dwight Smith, 128 Coastline Drive, Inman, SC 

3.  Cynthia Jones, 550 Thorn Cove Drive, Mayo, SC (signed up but did not speak) 

4.  Matt Spencer, 712 Brown Arrow Circle 

 

Melvin C. Norwood, 123 White Oak Rd., Spartanburg, SC, spoke regarding the City’s 

new litter officer. He thanked Council for what they do for the city. 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

VI.  Recognition of Retiring Police Officer MPO-Patrol Randy Hardy 

  Presenter:  Mayor Junie White 

Mayor White presented Mr. Hardy with his retirement plaque and thanked him for   

  his many years of dedicated service to the City of Spartanburg. 

 

VII. Presentation of Proclamation to Mr. Perry Lee 

 Presenter:  Mayor Junie White 

 Mayor White presented the proclamation to Mr. Lee and thanked him for his 

 dedication to keeping Woodland Heights litter free. 

 

VIII. “Keep OneSpartanburg Beautiful…A Community-wide Beautification Initiative” 

 Presentation by John Kimbrell, Executive Vice President/Spartanburg Chamber of  

           Commerce         
 Council received the report as information. 

  

IX.   Update from Citizens Advisory Council (CAC) 

 Presenter:  Mitch Kennedy, Assistant City Manager 

                               Wesley Hammond, Chairman of CAC            

 Council received the report as information. 

   

X.    Ordinance To Amend the Code of the City of Spartanburg 1988, Chapter 13, Article 

 III, Section 13-59(b) “Offenses Against Public Peace” by Adding Number 17, 

 “Collection of Commercial Solid Waste” (Second Reading)  

 Presenter:  Bob Coler, City Attorney 

Mr. Coler explained to Council that the additional wording per Council’s request, and as  

listed below, was added to the ordinance prior to second reading: 

 “For a first offense, the offender shall receive a written warning.  For a second offense,   

 the penalty shall be a $250 fine. For a third offense, the penalty shall be a $500 fine.  A   

 second or subsequent conviction shall be sufficient grounds for a thirty (30) day    

 suspension of the offender’s City of Spartanburg business license.  A third or subsequent  

 conviction shall be sufficient grounds for a revocation of the offender’s City of  

 Spartanburg business license pursuant to Section 9-15 of the City Code.” 

 Mayor pro tem Jenkins made a motion to approve the ordinance as amended with the   

 additional wording. Councilmember Littlejohn seconded the motion, which carried   

 unanimously 6 to 0,  

 

XI. Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Spartanburg 1988, Chapter 2, Article   

  V, Section 2, Division 1. Generally to Add Section 2 – 151 through Section 2-153   

 (First Reading) 

            Presenter: Bob Coler, City Attorney   

 Mr. Coler presented the item to Council as follows: 

 “City staff was approached by several councilmembers expressing a desire to have 

 the Mayor possess the authority to appoint members of council to subcommittees. 

 ACTION REQUESTED:  Council is being asked to provide first reading approval 

 of the proposed Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Spartanburg 1988, 

 Chapter 2, Article V, Section 2, Division 1. Generally to Add Sections 2-151-153.” 



3 

 

            Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the ordinance as presented on first 

 reading. Mayor pro tem Jenkins seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

  

XII. Annual Declaration of Vacancies on City of Spartanburg Boards and Commissions 

           Presenter:  Connie McIntyre, City Clerk                                

           Ms. McIntyre presented the item to Council as follows: 

 “City Council annually reviews vacancies on City of Spartanburg Boards and 

 Commissions. Vacancies are declared in April, unless circumstances dictate otherwise, 

 with the goal of Council having all the appointments/reappointments made by the second 

 meeting in June. This procedure meets the requirements of the resolution Council 

 approved regarding June 30 term expirations dated June 9, 2003. 

 

 Applications for vacancies will be accepted through June 17, 2019. In the event of 

 multiple applications for the number of vacancies on a particular board, a committee of 

 councilmembers is appointed to conduct interviews of the applicants. The committee will 

 bring forward their recommendation/s for full Council approval. 

 

 The application and the vacancies on each Board or Commission will be posted on the 

 City’s website. The information is also available upon request to the City Clerk. 

 

 A current list of vacancies is attached.” 

 

           Accommodations Tax Advisory Committee 

 4 vacancies – 2 eligible for reappointment 

 

 Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission  

 4 vacancies – all eligible for reappointment 

 

 Board of Architectural Design and Historic Review (HARB) 

 2 vacancies – 1 eligible for reappointment 

 

 Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals  

 1 vacancy 

 Design Review Board                                                                                                                                                          

 1 vacancy 

 Hospitality Tax Committee                                                                                                                                      

 2 vacancies - both eligible for reappointment 

 Housing Board of Adjustment and Appeals                                                                                                          

 3 vacancies - 1 eligible for reappointment                                                                                                                                 

  Planning Commission                                                                                                                                                   

 2 vacancies - 2 eligible for reappointment 



4 

 

 Public Safety Committee                                                                                                                                  

 2 vacancies - 1 eligible for reappointment 

 

 Spartanburg Memorial Auditorium Commission                                                                                             

 2 vacancies 

 

 Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals 

 2 vacancies - both eligible for reappointment 

            Council received the report as information.  

 

XIII. City Council Updates– Each Councilmember gave updates on their activities since 

 the previous council meeting. 

 

XIV. Executive Sessions-Councilmember Brown made a motion to adjourn to Executive 

 Session. Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 

 0. Council adjourned to Executive Session at 6:31 p.m.    

 

 A. Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-40-70 (a) (2) of the South Carolina  

        Code to Receive Legal Advice Related to Acquisition of Property 

 

           B. Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-4-70 (a) (5) of the South Carolina 

 Code to Discuss Matters Relating to an Economic Development Project  

            

           Council reconvened at 7:02 p.m. Mayor White stated that discussion was held with   

           no decisions made.  

 

 Council may take action on matters discussed in Executive Session after exiting   

 Executive Session. 

 

XV. Adjournment – Mayor pro tem Jenkins made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 Councilmember Littlejohn seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

 The meeting adjourned at 7:03 p.m.    

 

 

 

            _________________________________ 

              Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VII.   



    SUMMARY REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL  
 
 
 

TO:  Chris Story, City Manager       

 

FROM:  Mandy Merck, Special Events Manager   
      

SUBJECT: Special Events Update 

  
DATE:  April 17, 2019    

   
 

BACKGROUND: Special Events are in full swing in Downtown Spartanburg 

 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: None 

 

 

I would like to give a quick update to City Council on all of the Special Events happenings in 

Downtown Spartanburg.  



March 16 Shenanigans on the Square, Noon-10 pm
Thursdays in April Music on Main, 5:30-8:30 pm
Fridays in April Jazz on the Square, 5:30-8 pm

April 5 & 6 Hub City Hog Fest

April 13 Spartanburg Soaring Kite Festival, 11 am - 5 pm
Cribb’s Burger Cookoff, 2-8 pm

April 26-28 Spring Fling Weekend including Friday’s Bike Race

Thursdays in May Music on Main, 5:30-8:30 pm

Fridays in May Jazz on the Square, 5:30-8 pm

May 4 Earth Day Festival, 10 am - 3 pm
Cinco de Mayo, Noon-9 pm

May 20 Assault on Mt. Mitchell

Thursdays in June Music on Main, 5:30-8:30 pm

June 1 Sparkle City Rhythm & Ribs, 4-11 pm

June 8 Rock N’ Rescue, 2-6 pm
June 19 Pickin in the Park, 5-10 pm
Thursdays in July Music on Main, 5:30-8:30 pm

July 4 Red,White,& Boom,  5-10 pm

Fridays in Sept Live on the Square... (NEW EVENT!)

September 28 Melting Pot Music Festival, 3-9pm

October 5 International Festival, 11am-7 pm

October 19 Hub City Brew Fest, 1-5 pm

December 3 Dickens of a Christmas, 6-9 pm

2019 Downtown 
Event Schedule



  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

VIII.   



REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 
 

TO:  Chris Story, City Manager   

 

FROM: Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
      

SUBJECT: Development Agreement and Transfer of Property 

 

DATE: April 22, 2019 

 

 

BACKGROUND:   
Staff is requesting approval for the City Manager to enter into a development agreement for the transfer and 

development 328, 330, and 334 Caulder Avenue (TMS: 7-16-07: Parcels 157.00, 158.00 and 159.00) 

located in the South Converse neighborhood. GA Management, LLC an upstate minority owned 

development team of contractors and real estate developers will build two affordable and workforce 

housing home on the three properties. 

 

The City will provide closing cost assistance to the affordable buyers at 80% of Area Median Income 

(AMI) of less. Sales price of the affordable unit will be near $120,000 or less. Sales prices of the 

Workforce Housing unit will be at approximately $160,000.  The purpose of this development is to convert 

useable City property into long term tax producing properties and to meet City’s housing objectives. 

                                                                                                     

ACTION REQUESTED: Staff is requesting approval for the City Manager to enter into a development  

agreement with GA Management, LLC. 

 

 

BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DATA:   Not applicable. 

 



 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER  

TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR THE TRANSFER OF  

328 CAULDER AVENUE – BLOCK MAP SHEET 7-16-07, PARCEL 157.00; 330 

CAULDER AVENUE – BLOCK MAP SHEET 7-16-07, PARCEL 158.00; AND 334 

CAULDER AVENUE – BLOCK MAP SHEET 7-16-07, PARCEL 159.00. 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of Spartanburg, 

South Carolina, in Council assembled: 

 

Section 1. Approve and authorize the City manager to enter into a development agreement 

for the transfer of 328 Caulder Avenue (7-16-07-157.00); 330 Caulder Avenue (7-16-07-

158.00); AND 334 Caulder Avenue (7-16-07-159.00). 

 

Section 2. The City of Spartanburg will enter into a development agreement with GA 

Management, LLC for the transfer and development of the property. 

 

Section 3. GA Management, LLC will complete its due diligence to build 2 affordable 

units and one workforce housing unit within one (1) year of approval of the development 

agreement. 

 

Section 4. The City Manager is authorized to sign necessary documents to execute this 

transaction. 

 

Section 5.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of enactment. 

 

DONE AND RATIFIED this ____ day of May, 2019. 

 

   _________________________ 

   MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

________________________________ 

Robert P. Coler, City Attorney 

 

 

___ /___ / ___ 1st Reading 

 

___ /___ / ___ 2nd Reading 



































  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

IX.   



 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

TO:  Chris Story, City Manager  

 

FROM: Jay Squires, Streets & Storm Water Manager 

 

SUBJECT: Saxon Avenue Culvert Improvement Project   

 

DATE: April 16, 2019 

 

 

BACKGROUND: Staff received bids for the installation of approximately 50 feet of 24 inch drainage pipe from 

under Saxon Avenue. The project would be near # 530 Saxon Avenue.  

 
 

The following bids were received:  

 

HRH Services, LLC. Spartanburg, S.C.  $ 64,080 

Martin and Son Contracting, Inc. Spartanburg, S.C. $ 93,900 

 

 

Staff has reviewed the bids and the qualifications for each of these contractors.  Based on that review, staff has 

determined that, HRH Services, LLC. is the responsive low bidder. No bids were submitted from MWBE 

certified contractors.   It is anticipated that it will take 20 days (depending on weather) to complete this project.  

Staff will give neighborhood residents advance notice using door hangers and mailers. A portion of Saxon 

Avenue will be closed during construction for safety reasons. A detour route will be in place for convenience 

while the segment of road is closed.  

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  
 

Allow staff to accept the bids and authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with HRH Services, LLC. 

for the completion of the project. 

 

BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  

 

$64,080 to be paid from the Storm Water Construction Account.  
 

 

 


